
DATE:  December 20, 2022 
TIME:   6:00 PM 

JOIN ONLINE VIA ZOOM (NOT TEAMS): 
ZOOM LINK:    https://bit.ly/3xlFY9B 
MEETING ID: 976 1525 3648 
PASSCODE: 894903  
DIAL BY YOUR LOCATION: +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)

For inquiries and/or assistance regarding how to use the City’s online meeting format 
please email clerk@carnationwa.gov, or call (425) 333-4192 

1. CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Jim Ribail 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Jim Ribail 
3. ROLL CALL: City Clerk Lora Wilmes 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: Mayor and Council  
5. EXECUTIVE SESSION: NONE 

6. CONSENT AGENDA:
a) Approval of Minutes for the following dates:

i. Regular Meeting:12/06/22
b) Claims - Approval of Claims

i. Batch #1: $154,112.13

7. APPROVAL OF CLAIMS:
a) Claims- Batch #2: $49,571.00

8. PUBLIC COMMENT & REQUESTS:
Public comment on meeting items or other issues of note or concern.

9. PRESENTATIONS:
a) Senior Center – Lisa Yeager

CARNATION CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
Regular Meeting 

Mayor Jim Ribail, Deputy Mayor Dustin Green, Ryan Burrell, Tim Harris, Adair Hawkins 

11

https://bit.ly/3xlFY9B


December 20, 2022 

– 2 –

i. Carnation Fund
b) Carnation Farmer’s Market

i. Who is the Carnation Farmers Market?
ii. Feasibility of Operations at Tolt Commons

10. FUTURE AGENDAS:
a) Tentative agenda for the meeting of January 3, 2023
b) Tentative agenda for the meeting of January 17, 2023

11. ADJOURNMENT: Mayor Jim Ribail

2



  

 
1. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Jim Ribail 

At 6:01 PM 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Councilmember Adair Hawkins 
 

3. ROLL CALL: City Clerk Lora Wilmes 
Present: Mayor Ribail, Deputy Mayor Green, Councilmember Burrell, 
Councilmember Hawkins, Councilmember Harris.  
 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA:  Mayor and Council  
MOTION BY COUNCILMEMBER HARRIS AND SECOND BY COUNCILMAN 
GREEN. MAYOR RIBAIL ADDED UNDER DISCUSSION ITEMS TO DISCUSS 
FINAL MEETING FOR THE YEAR, SCHEDULE A TIME TO MEET WITH THE 
FARMERS MARKET, AND ANNUAL RETREAT DATE. MOTION PASSED (5-0). 

  
5. CONSENT AGENDA: 

i. Claims- Approval of Claims: 
1.  Batch #1 - $131,324.00 
2.  Batch #2 - $37,993.65 
3.  Batch #3 - $173,779.92  
4.  Batch #4 - $119,894.02 

ii. Payroll- Approval of Payroll: 
1. November 1st – November 15th: $29,718.30  
2. November 16th- November 30th: $32,633.11 

a. City Manager’s Salary Adjustment.  
            MOTION BY COUNCILMEMBER HARRIS SECOND BY       
            COUNCILMEMBER HAWKINS TO APPROVE THE CONSENT AGENDA AS  
            PRESENTED. MOTION PASSED (5-0) 
 
 

6. COUNCIL REPORTS AND REQUESTS: Council & Council Committees.  
Councilmember Burrell  

CARNATION CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
Regular Meeting Minutes 12.06.22 

 
Mayor Jim Ribail, Deputy Mayor Dustin Green, Ryan Burrell, Tim Harris, Adair Hawkins 
 

3



 November 15, 2022 

– 2 – 

• Attended Mainvue Tours with Council. Appreciates City Manager setting 
up.  

• Attended a Snoqualmie Valley Government Association Meeting. 
• Attended the SCA Annual Meeting. 
• Met with Council and Senator Hawkins to discuss legislative priorities. 
• Attended the Christmas in Carnation event. It was a great community 

event. 
 
Councilmember Harris 

• Attended the Mainvue and Tolt Villa Tours. Thanked City Manager and 
Tim Woolett on putting that together. He had a few questions that City 
Manager will address in her report. 

• Met with Council and Senator Hawkins to discuss legislative priorities. 
• SCA Annual Meeting and enjoyed hearing about the economic 

development opportunities that are offered through DNR. 
• Thanked the Chamber for the Christmas in Carnation event. It was a 

great event and loved seeing the vendors.  
• Thanked Michael & Gina Fasette for the lights on Tolt Ave. Thank Public 

Works and City Manager, the city is looking great, and the community 
has noticed. 

• Weekly meetings with F&O and have been assessing the relative 
position of Carnation compared to our neighbors in hopes to tackle 
staffing issues. 

• SCA North Valley Caucus Meeting on December 15th at 1 PM. The 
Snoqualmie Valley seat on this board is being elected at this meeting. 
The committees still have vacant seats on this board as well. 

  Councilmember Hawkins  
• Christmas in Carnation was a fantastic event. Thanked The Fasette 

family, Chamber, and the local Boy Scout troop for setting everything up. 
It was a great opportunity to discuss priorities of the local businesses. 

• Thanked the City for shoveling the snow off the sidewalks on Tolt Ave. 
• Attended a mobility meeting and met with other cities on how they are 

setting up mobility, walkability, biking, and it was very informative.  
 
Deputy Mayor Green 

• Echoing on what everyone was saying. Wanted to expand more on the 
Sound Cities Association – that it is an association with all cities in King 
County excluding Seattle and it represents about a million people. It 
gives the opportunity for elected officials to meet. This association has 
monthly dues that each city pays into. At the previous meeting the 
association adopted the annual budget. The dues are relative to the 
population of the city. Carnation pays $1,500.00. This gives us an equal 

4



 November 15, 2022 

– 3 – 

vote and voice to provide information regionally and advocacy for 
Carnation.  

• Christmas in Carnation was a great community event. Wanted to give a 
big shout out to our Chamber. There was a great turn out. 

 
Mayor Ribail 

• Attended Mainvue Tours with Council. Appreciate City Manager setting 
up.  

• Attended Area 3 Mayors Meeting. Many Mayors are meeting with King 
County about the increase in organized crime in both Issaquah, 
Snoqualmie and North Bend. Mayor shared with the committee about 
the recent IGA break in and how it seems the truck that broke into the 
IGA may also have been involved in another robbery down South.  

• Christmas in Carnation was a great event. Thanked the Chamber and 
looking forward to next year. 

 
7. STAFF REPORTS: 

a) Economic Development: Port of Seattle - Ricardo Noguera 
Under the great work of the City Manager and staff, the Port of Seattle 
invited the City to submit a proposal for an economic development grant. 
The City was awarded $10,000 for 2022 and 2023. With this money the City 
will survey local business to see how they are fairing after the pandemic. 
The City will be hosting a Small Business Summit on January 20th, 2023. 
Surveys will be mailed out to the businesses. At the Summit we will review 
the survey and gather information. The product will be not only seeing how 
our small businesses are doing, but with this money we will be able to 
produce a Carnation Business Directory.  

b) Capital Improvement Projects: Lora Wilmes 
The City of Carnation was awarded funding from the Transportation 
Improvement Board for the McKinley Project and the E. Bird Project. The 
City was also funded under their City-wide Crack Seal Program. The City 
also received a loan through the Public Works Board for the Brumbaugh 
project. This funding allows the City to move forward with these projects in 
2023. To see the funding document: 

c) Community Development: Tim Woolett 
Carnation development projects in process. Schefer River Front Property 
has preliminary permits completed. Tolt Villas is moving ahead on schedule. 
Tolt Place has submitted demo permits and starting on this site soon. Tolt 
Legal has a site plan review and will be issued by Christmas. Tolt Villas has 
a Public Hearing on December 28th, 2022. The department received an 
application for the Senior Center for a 15-unit senior housing.  

d) External Services: City Manager Ana Cortez 
City Manager emphasized Tolt Villas and addressed questions regarding 
parking, tree encroachment on sidewalks, and the efficiency to be gained on 

5



 November 15, 2022 

– 4 – 

the entire project moving eastward. Tim Woolett and City Manager Cortez 
put all documents regarding site plans and other planning documents on the 
carnationwa.gov website. City Manager Cortez and Tim Woolett will be 
meeting with Civil Engineer to discuss the sidewalk issues since the 
sidewalk gets narrower when heading north. This meeting will allow us to 
decide what options the City has. City Manager wanted to welcome two new 
additions to the team. Rhonda Ender has accepted the position of 
Community Economic Development Principal and Brandon Schell who has 
accepted the position of Community Economic Development Business 
Manager. There is ongoing recruitment for open positions. These positions 
are interviewed by panels and the finalist will either meet directly with the 
City Manager or City Manager and staff. The City Manager is looking into 
the cost of how much additional lightings would be. A lease was also 
renewed for the Snoqualmie Velley Preservation Alliance for space upstairs 
in City Hall. The Sno-Valley Tilth will not be renewing their lease primarily 
since their team is working remotely. City Manager attended a 
transportation meeting with Councilmember Perry. The most important 
takeaway was the need for better marketing on transportation for the youth. 
 

 
8.  PUBLIC COMMENT & REQUESTS: Public comment on meeting items or 

other issues of note or concern.  
Jules Hughes 31721 W. Rutherford St spoke thanking Council for creating the 
Tolt Vision Committee and hopes the Council continues the efforts of the Tolt 
Commons area with professional design and public input. 
 

9.  PRESENTATIONS: (all presentations can be found on our website) 
a) Finance and Operations Committee: 

Presented by Councilmember Harris and Mayor Ribail 
b) Schefer Riverfront Property 

 
10. EXECUTIVE SESSION:  

RCW 42.30.110 (1) (B)(b) To consider the selection of a site or the acquisition 
of real estate by lease or purchase when public knowledge regarding such 
consideration would cause a likelihood of increased price. The Council may 
make a decision in regular session.  
PRESENT: MAYOR RIBAIL, DEPUTY MAYOR GREEN, COUNCILMEMBER 
BURRELL, COUNCILMEMBER HAWKINS, COUNCILMEMBER HARRIS, 
CITY MANAGER CORTEZ, CITY CLERK WILMES. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
STARTED AT 7:44PM AND WAS SET TO ADJOURN AT 8:15PM. 
EXECUTIVE SESSION WAS EXTENDED FOR 5 MINUTES AT 8:15PM. 
EXECUTIVE SESSION ADJOURNED AT 8:20PM. COUNCIL DECIDED TO 
TAKE ACTION. COUNCILMEMBER HARRIS MOTIONED TO AUTHORIZE 
THE CITY MANAGER TO NEGIOIATE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH 

6

http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=42.30.110


 November 15, 2022 

– 5 – 

THE REMLINGER GROUP. COUNCILMEMBER BURRELL SECOND. 
DISSCUSSION BY COUNCILMEMBER HARRIS FOLLOWED TO MAKE IT 
CLEAR THAT THIS MOTION AUTHORIZES CITY MANAGER TO HAVE A 
NEGIOATION DISCUSSION ONLY. MOTION PASSED (5-0) 

 
11.  AGENDA BILLS:  

a) AB22-74 Resolution: Passing the Biennial Budget 
Enter path here 
MOTION BY COUNCILMEMBER HARRIS. SECOND BY 
COUNCILMEMBER GREEN TO ACCEPT AB22-74. MOTION PASSED  
(5-0) 

b) AB22-75 Motion: Setting the Date for Consideration of Request for 
Annexation.  
MOTION BY COUNCILMEMBER HAWKINS SECOND BY 
COUNCILMEMBER HARRIS TO ACCEPT AB22-75. MOTION PASSED  
(5-0) 

c) AB22-76 Motion: Approve Contract with SJ Environmental for Emergency 
Services for Full Operations of Sewer and Water Utilities.   
MOTION COUNCILMEMBER HARRIS TO TABLE AGENDA BILL 22-76. 
SECOND BY COUNCILMEMBER GREEN TO TABLE AB22-72.  MOTION 
TABLED (5-0). 

 
12.  DISCUSSION ITEMS: 

a) Senator Brad Hawkins’ Townhall session on Thursday, December 29, 2022, 
6:30pm. 

b) Carnation City Council Retreat on Saturday, January 14th, 2023, or other 
date.  

 
13.  FUTURE AGENDAS: 

a) Tentative Agenda for the meeting of December 6, 2022 
b) Tentative Agenda for the meeting of December 20, 2022 

 
14.  ADJOURNMENT: Mayor Jim Ribail 

 At 9:19 PM 
 
Approved at the regular meeting of the Carnation City Council on _________, 2022. 

 

 
_____________________________________________________ 

MAYOR, JIM RIBAIL 
 

 
_____________________________________________________ 

CITY CLERK, LORA WILMES 

7



12.6.22

PAID CLAIMS
INVOICE 
AMOUNT TIM CR LORA CR

BRANDO
N CR

NON 
INCOME NUMBER PROJECT NOTES

R&A Cleaning Service $2,160.00 PD-1
Cerica Liam $840.00 PD-2

PAID CLAIMS TOTAL $3,000.00

Active Claims
INVOICE 
AMOUNT TIM CR LORA CR

BRANDO
N CR

NON 
INCOME NUMBER PROJECT NOTES

All Star Heating & Air Conditioning $11,003.71 1
Adobe- have changed to annual billing 2
Comcast Business $1,620.68 3
FusionTek- Onboarding $3,110.99 4
FusionTek-Service $3,621.88 5
Gray & Osborne 24th  watermain $9,485.88 6
Gray & Osborne Admin and planning $176.84 7
Invoice CLoud- 10.31 $876.60 8
Invoice Cloud- 11.30 $871.80 9
King County Sheriff- Nov $40,029.50 10
King County Sheriff- Dec $40,029.50 11
Larry Brown Construction $22,288.66 12
Nitish Sharma- Linda #109 $772.00 13
Nitish Sharma- Linda & Stacy #106 $1,021.00 14
Northern Environmental $6,860.00 15
Safebuilt-inspections, planning October $1,240.00 16
Safebuilt-inspections, planning November $1,016.50 17
Sharp $5.10 18
Thompson, Benjamin $672.08 19
Utilities Underground Location Center $21.93 20

CLAIMANT TOTAL $144,724.65

Interfund
INVOICE 
AMOUNT TIM CR LORA CR

BRANDO
N CR

NON 
INCOME NUMBER PROJECT NOTES

Tolt Commons Water 6387.48 INT-1

INTERFUND TOTAL $6,387.48

DATE 11/29/2022 GRAND TOTAL $154,112.13

ANA CORTEZ JIM RIBAIL TIM HARRIS

APPROVED:
SPRINGBROOK
CHECKS ISSUED
CHECKS MAILED
COUNTIL MEETING

F&O COMMITTEE DATE  BATCH #1

8



12.13.22
PAID CLAIMS INVOICE AMOUNT TIM CR LORA CR BRANDON CR NON INCOME NUMBER PROJECT NOTES

PD-1

PAID CLAIMS TOTAL $0.00
CLAIMANT INVOICE AMOUNT TIM CR LORA CR BRANDON CR NON INCOME NUMBER PROJECT NOTES

All Star Heating & Air Conditioning in batch #1- 12.6.22 1
KPG Psomas $4,857.44 2
LDC- Housing Action Plan $3,341.00 3
Springbrook $43.09 4
ARC Architects $13,903.38 5
2 Brothers Landscaping #100- Maintenance $3,913.12 6
2 Brother Landscaping #101- Tolt Ave $1,956.60 7
Sno-Valley Senior Center $7,000.00 8
Schell, Brandon $7,884.00 9
PSE- eugene & tolt st lights $2,366.07 10
King County Radio Communication Services $127.18 11
Sound Publishing-svr, rfp pub defender $991.40 12
Sound Publishing-svr, public hearing $254.50 13
Sound Publishing-svr, lot subdivision $200.39 14
Sound Publishing-svr,rfp engineering $359.85 15
Sound Publishing-svr,site development $140.60 16
Utility Reimbursements- $1,832.38 17

Carnation Chamber of Commerce 2022 Membership 
application $400.00 18

19
20
21
22
23

CLAIMANT TOTAL $49,571.00
Interfund INVOICE AMOUNT TIM CR LORA CR BRANDON CR NON INCOME NUMBER PROJECT NOTES

INT-1

INTERFUND TOTAL $0.00

DATE 11/29/2022 GRAND TOTAL $49,571.00

ANA CORTEZ JIM RIBAIL TIM HARRIS

APPROVED:
SPRINGBROOK
CHECKS ISSUED
CHECKS MAILED
COUNTIL MEETING

F&O COMMITTEE DATE For Council 12.20.22

9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



Report to the 
City of 

Carnation 2022

49



Thank you for the $7,000 grant

We served 13,400 hot, made from scratch 

meals to 93 Carnation residents!

50



You also enabled us to provide a wide 

range of fitness classes, art, adult 

education, health & wellness programs 

plus transportation. 

51



Other ways the money you gave was leveraged:

The city’s support was instrumental in getting grants!

* 4Culture (art classes)

* King County Parks Dept (fitness classes) 

* Puget Sound Energy & Snoqualmie Tribe for meals

We have a partnership with 

the Mt. Si Senior Center and 

Issaquah to provide joint 

programming with SeaMar

(Spanish speakers), GenPride

(Rainbow elders), Encompass 

(kinship care) and the India 

Assoc. of W. Wash. (Part of 

VSHSL – Veterans, Senior, 

Human Services Levy) 52



53



54



55



  

 
DATE:  January 3rd, 2023  
TIME:   6:00 PM 
 
JOIN ONLINE:   ZOOM MEETING (NOT TEAMS) 
 
MEETING ID:    983 3856 5355 
MEETING LINK:                           http://bit.ly/3BbmBBu                    
PASSCODE: 970731  
DIAL BY YOUR LOCATION:  +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
 
For inquiries and/or assistance regarding how to use the City’s online meeting format 
please email clerk@carnationwa.gov, or call (425) 333-4192 
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Jim Ribail 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Councilman Ryan Burrell 
3. ROLL CALL: City Clerk Lora Wilmes 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: Mayor and Council  
5. EXECUTIVE SESSION:  

 
6. CONSENT AGENDA: 

a) Proclamation: National Mentoring Month 
b) Approval of Minutes for the following dates: 

i. Regular Session: 12/20/22 
c) Claims and Payroll: 

i. Claims- Approval of Claims in the amount of XXX 
ii. Payroll- Approval of Payroll for December 16 – December 31, 

2022. 
 

7. COUNCIL REPORTS AND REQUESTS: Council & Council Committees 
 

8. STAFF REPORTS: 
a) External Services: City Manager Ana Cortez 

CARNATION CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
Regular Meeting  

 
Mayor Jim Ribail, Deputy Mayor Dustin Green, Ryan Burrell, Tim Harris, Adair Hawkins 
 

56

http://bit.ly/3BbmBBu


 January 3, 2023 

– 2 – 

b) Internal Services: City Clerk Lora Wilmes  
 

9. PUBLIC COMMENT & REQUESTS: Public comment on meeting items or 
other issues of note or concern 
 

10.  PRESENTATIONS: 
a) Empower Youth Network – Laura Smith 

i. Carnation Fund 

 
11.  AGENDA BILLS:  

a) AB23-XX Resolution: Entering into Contract with Engineering Firm (LW) 
 

12.  DISCUSSION ITEMS: 
a) Planning Docket 
b) Annexation – Harvold Property 
c) City Manager Contract 
d) City Council Reorganization 
 

13.  FUTURE AGENDAS:  
a) Tentative agenda for the meeting of January 17, 2023 
b) Tentative agenda for the meeting of February 7, 2023 

 
14.  ADJOURNMENT: Mayor Jim Ribail 

 

57



  

 
DATE:  January 17th, 2023  
TIME:   6:00 PM 
 
JOIN ONLINE VIA ZOOM (NOT TEAMS): 
 
ZOOM LINK:                                 https://bit.ly/3xlFY9B  
MEETING ID:    976 1525 3648  
PASSCODE: 894903  
DIAL BY YOUR LOCATION:  +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
 
For inquiries and/or assistance regarding how to use the City’s online meeting format 
please email clerk@carnationwa.gov, or call (425) 333-4192 
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Jim Ribail 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Deputy Mayor Dustin Green 
3. ROLL CALL: City Clerk Lora Wilmes 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: Mayor and Council  
5. EXECUTIVE SESSION:  

 
6. CONSENT AGENDA: 

a) Approval of Minutes for the following dates: 
i.  Regular Session: 01/03/23 

b) Claims and Payroll: 
i. Claims- Approval of Claims in the amount of XXX 
ii. Payroll- Approval of Payroll for January 1 – January 15, 2022. 

 
7. COUNCIL REPORTS AND REQUESTS: Council & Council Committees 

 
8. STAFF REPORTS: 

a) External Services: City Manager Ana Cortez 
b) Internal Services: Chief Financial Officer Nitish Sharma 

 

CARNATION CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
Regular Meeting  

 
Mayor Jim Ribail, Deputy Mayor Dustin Green, Ryan Burrell, Tim Harris, Adair Hawkins 
 

58

https://bit.ly/3xlFY9B


 January 17, 2023 

– 2 – 

9. PUBLIC COMMENT & REQUESTS: Public comment on meeting items or 
other issues of note or concern 
 
 

10.  PRESENTATIONS:  
a) Carnation Farms Update – Paul Shoemaker 

 
11.  AGENDA BILLS:  

a) AB23-XX 
 

12.  DISCUSSION ITEMS: 
a) Planning Docket 
 

13.  FUTURE AGENDAS:  
a) Tentative agenda for the meeting of January 17, 2023 
b) Tentative agenda for the meeting of February 7, 2023 

 
14.  ADJOURNMENT: Mayor Jim Ribail 

 

59




